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CHAIR CARROLL: . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of February 13, 2013 is now in
session. I'm Councilmember Bob Carroll, Chair of the Land Use Committee. May I request that
everybody here disable their cell phones or anything else that makes noise. We have the
Members with us this morning this afternoon. We have our Vice-Chair, Don Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Good. . .good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: We have our Council Chair, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Our representative from the island of Molokai, Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: From Lahaina, Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR CARROLL: From Kihei, Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: From Haiku side, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And from Kahului, Mr. Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And from our Wailuku area, Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: From Department of Corporation Counsel, we have James Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Good afternoon.
CHAIR CARROLL: From the Executive Branch, we have for LU-24, we have Planning Director Will
Spence and we have Michele McLean and Paul Fasi, the Planner for the Department of Planning.
For LU-4, we have Planning Director also Mr. Spence, Kurt Wollenhaupt, Planner, Department
of Planning, Rowena Dagdag-Andaya, Deputy Director of Public Works will be on call. Our
applicant's representatives, we have for LU-24, we have Raymond Cabebe, consultant for the
landowner, landowner applicant, David Law. For LU-4, we have Mich Hirano of Mtmekiyo &
Hiraga, Incorporated, Blanca Lafolette, Project Coordinator, Pacific Rim Land, Incorporated,
representative of Goodfellow Brothers, Incorporated. Committee Staff, we have Clarita Balala,
Committee Secretary, and Carla Nakata, Legislative Attorney. Today we have two items on our
agenda for consideration: LU-24, Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning for 0.375
acre identified by TMK: (2) 2-6-009:017, Paia, and LU-4, District Boundary Amendment,
Community Plan Amendment, and Change of Zoning for 500 East Welakahao Road in Kihei.
We will now accept public testimony for individuals wishing. . .who will be testifying in the
Chamber. Please sign up at the desk on the 8 th floor lobby outside the Chamber door. If you'll
be testifying for one of remote locations specified on the meeting agenda, please sign up with the
District Office Staff at that location. Testimony will be limited to the items listed on the agenda
today. Each testifier will be allowed to testify on each item for up to three minutes with one
minute to conclude if requested. When testifying please state your name and the name of any
organization you are representing. We have a connection to the District Offices so residents
from these sites can testify. To be fair we will rotate through the sites. Members, please
remember that participants from the District Offices depend on us speaking loudly, clearly, and
directly into the microphone. The Chair will request that the Staff there identify themselves.
Hana Office?
MS. LONO: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai Office?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon at the Molokai Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Lanai Office.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Is there anyone to testify at the Lanai Office?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Chair, the Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
-3-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2013

CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai Office, is there anyone to testify?
MS. ALCON: No one's here waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Hana Office, is there anyone waiting to testify?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Danny Collier. He's testifying as a representative of
Goodfellow Brothers on LU-4.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone and any organization that you might
represent.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY....
MR. COLLIER: My name is Danny Collier and I'm affiliated with Goodfellow Brothers for the last
32 years, going to be 33. Council Chair, thank you, and Council, thank you. I want to make a
few statements here. I just want to testify on behalf of Goodfellow's and Rim Rock [sic]. .
mean, excuse me -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Pacific Rim.
MR. COLLIER: -- Pacific Rim. And we kind of real close family on that. And the property that we're
looking at right now is the baseyard at 500 Welakahao, and we've been at that property for more
years than I've been with Goodfellow. I've seen that property from the beginning The. . .what
we wanna do is see if we can have this changed into. . .get our permits and everything changed,
so we can continue this rock quarry crusher unit there. It services a lot of work on the Kihei side,
and you guys know Kihei has a lot of rock. This service is our jobs. We bring it there and what
we do. . .we make product out of it. And it also services some of the people. . .some of the
contract.. .the smaller contractors and they don't have no place to dump it. Sometimes you
gonna find some boulders piles on the side of the road and what they do, they come to us and we,
you know, we take it in, but what it really mainly does is make product, and we recycle the
product that comes out of the ground, and we can, you know, we make UTB, 3F material, 3 Inch
Minus, all that. So I would like you guys to highly consider the changes that is proposed to you
guys today. This benefits everybody that's on that side of the island and I thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The. . .thank you for being here and testifying. The stone is
primarily used for what now?
MR. COLLIER: We make products out of it, you know like. . .what we do.. .we return it to the ground,
we use it as fill material. We make UTB for the roads, any product that can be made out of that
material, we make.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is there...Chair, a follow-up. Has there been any talk to utilizing it
for asphalt purpose?
MR. COLLIER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No?
MR. COLLIER: No asphalt.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. COLLIER: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Charlie Jencks, testifying as a representative of Pacific
Rim Land on LU-4.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. My name is Charlie Jencks.
I'm the manager for Pacific Rim Land. I've been working with Blanca Lafollette on this
application for quite some time, along with Mich Hirano from Munekiyo & Hiraga. I just want
to double up on what Danny said. He did a good job telling you why this is an important facility
in South Maui for Goodfellow Brothers. Little bit of history, the land was owned at one time by
Haleakala Ranch. They subdivided out the parcel, Pacific Rim Land purchased it for the sole
purpose of using it as a Kihei Rock Crushing Facility and baseyard for Goodfellow Brothers.
It's not just rock crushing that goes on at this plant. It's also officing for the company, for the
operational side of the company, as well as storage of equipment which is critical when you have
a tsunami or a hurricane or some kind of emergency in South Maui, the boys are there with the
equipment, Johnny on the spot to get the job done and help the community. So it's an important
plant centrally located in a great location for South Maui to serve the entire community on the
south side of Maui. One of the issues I want to just make really clear here is that, you know,
we're asking for a Conditional Permit but also zoning to provide some certainty for the company
in the long term. And the zoning we're asking for is a combination of uses that aren't Light
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Industrial because we have some heavy activity on the site but not M-3 which is your new
Zoning District you've approved. It's somewhere in the middle. It's M-2 Zoning and in your
package you'll see a matrix that identifies the types of uses that we would like to see be allowed
on the property, and that list was carefully crafted so that we address the concerns of the
community through the KCA and the Planning Commission, and are not uses that are heavy in
nature and would be an annoyance to the community. So when you. . .in the context of the
discussion on the future land use designation, please look at that matrix, consider the uses that
we're proposing that match the location, the neighbors, the community which is on the makai
side of the highway, and the traffic needs, and all the other impacts you'll get from that kind of a
use. We don't want to go on to the heavy side, we don't need the light side, what we've proposed
to you is a good mix of uses that would satisfy the needs of the company in the long term and
also provide an opportunity for someone else to come in and use this site sometime in the distant
future.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Jencks, for being here.
MR. JENCKS: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So with this M-2, you're still going to have to get a County Special Use
Permit, is that correct?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And if you had M-3, you wouldn't need the Special Use Permit,
but you wouldn't have enough office space, I think is what. . .is that an issue because M-2 allows
for a little bit more office space?
MR. JENCKS: I'm not sure...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Baseyard office space?
MR. JENCKS: I'm not sure that's the case. I think the issue here, Council member, are the other types
of uses you get with M-3 that I don't think the Kihei community would like. That's why the M-2
designation with the uses that we've identified respond to their concerns. And, you know,
I. . .the issue of getting a Conditional Permit for the rock crushing facility.. .GBI does a great job
with the other regulatory influences on that kind of an operation with the State, DOH, and the
Department, so they cover all their bases, do a great job. I don't think that's a real concern in the
mid-term, perhaps in the long-term where there are other opportunities we've created for the
company, they may even move out of that plant. So, you know, from our standpoint, we don't
see the processing of a Conditional Permit as being a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
-6-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2013

MR. JENCKS: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai Office, is anyone there willing. . .waiting to give public testimony?
Molokai Office, do you have anyone waiting to give public testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai Office, is there anyone is there waiting to give public
testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hana Office, is there anyone there waiting to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Willy Greig, he'll be testifying on item LU-4.
MR. GREIG: Thank you. Aloha, my name is Willy Greig. I'm a business agent for operating
engineers and I am in support of Goodfellow's intent to utilize or obtain permanent land use
entitlements for this Kihei baseyard being that it is a central area in Kihei, it limits
traffic. . .lesser traffic in and out of town by also utilizing and reprocessing materials in that area,
of course with the rock crushing facilities, and limiting the, like I said, limiting the traffic and
creating jobs as well out there that doesn't have, you know, doesn't have an impact on town as
much for everybody in the crusher facilities in town, being that they recycle and process that
same material that is taken out and taken back to the projects that need put back in place. Thank
you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, there are no further testifiers.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to give testimony at this time, please
come forward? Seeing none, Hana Office is there anyone wishing to give testimony?
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MS. LONO: There's no one at the Hana Office waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Lanai Office, is there anyone wishing to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai Office, is there anyone wishing to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, if there is no objection, we will close public testimony for
today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY....

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have before us LU-24, Community Plan Amendment and Change in
Zoning for 0.37 acre lot, identified by TMK: (2) 2-6-009:017, Paia. The Committee is in receipt
of County Communication 11-317, from Councilmember Mike White, transmitting a proposed
resolution to refer to the Maui Planning Commission, proposed bills to amend the Paia-Haiku
Community Plan and Land Use Map for Public/Quasi-Public to Single-Family, and to change the
zoning from P-1, Public/Quasi-Public to District R-3, Residential District for approximately
0.375 acre located at 367 Hana Highway, Paia, Maui, Hawaii, to correct a mapping error and
make the existing single-family resident use consistent with the property land use designation.
The Council adopted Resolution 12-1 in January 6, 2012, referring the proposed bills to the Maui
Planning Commission. By correspondence dated January 28, 2013, the Planning Director
transmitted comments from the Maui Planning Commission in response to Resolution 12-1 along
with the following: a revised proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend the PaiaHaiku Community Plan and Land Use Map from Public/Quasi-Public to Single-family for Tax
Key Map Number (2) 2-6-009:017, Paia, Maui, Hawaii, and a revised proposed bill entitled, A
Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning from P-1 Public/Quasi-Public District to R-3 Residential
District for Tax Key Map Number (2) 2-6-009:017, Paia, Maui, Hawaii. The Committee may
consider to recommend passage of the revised proposed bills on first reading with or without
further revisions. The Committee may also consider filing of this Communication and other
related actions. Councilmember White, as a Member that introduced this matter, would you like
to make the opening remarks? Mr. White.

ITEM NO. 24: COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR 0.375 ACRE IDENTIFIED BY TMK: (2) 2-6-009:017 (PAIA)
(CC 11-317)
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. This has been a long path and I thank you for
bringing this forward and for all the work that you've put in to it. This property is, as it's stated,
is.. .was included in the Public/Quasi-Public District during the Community Plan process and it
was done so in error. And when the owner first came to the County, they were instructed that
they would have to do an Environmental Assessment in order to change the zoning back to what
it was before the mistake had taken place. And this is.. .we're dealing with the third planning
assistant on this with the. . .and the second owner, but things really started moving when myself
and Ms. McLean were standing on the side of the road in Paia, doing a County on the Corner and
the. . .one of the people that was assisting the owner came up and we started talking about it and
can't we find an easier way to do this without putting the cost back on the owner. And so over a
long line of discussions with Corp. Counsel, with the Planning Department, and with the OEQC
in Honolulu, it was determined that, in fact, if the Council has.. .or the County actually. . .the
County and the Council have the broad powers to do community plans and General Plans
making sweeping changes as we've all just seen and to be able to do so without an
Environmental Assessment or an Environmental Impact Statement. Why can't we fix a mistake
ourselves since the County initiated it without putting the onus back on the property owner? And
so with the help of Ms. McLean and Mr. Spence and Pat Wong, and I think in the end, James
probably got the responsibility to draft the response, but we now have a clear determination that
if we make a mistake, we can actually fix it ourselves instead of making the landowner take care
of the time and the expense it requires. So I'd like to thank you specifically for not putting this
on the agenda until we got a clear determination in writing that we. . .either a County Council or
an Administrative initiated change does not need an Environmental Assessment. In other words,
if we made the mistake, we get to clean it up ourselves. So thank you very much, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Planning Department, do you have any comment? Ms. McLean?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you, Chair. Yes, and thank you, Councilmember White for that introduction.
Just a quick summary, as is stated in your binders, when the 1983 Paia-Haiku Community Plan
was adopted, for some reason the line between the Residential area and the Public/Quasi-Public
area migrated so that this parcel had previously been Single-Family Residential and due to a
mapping error it became Public/Quasi-Public even though it already had two residential
dwellings on it. And then quite some time later, when the County initiated a interim. . .Urban
Interim Re-Zoning project, this parcel initially wasn't included in that re-zoning effort but at the
tail end of that for some reason it got zoned Public/Quasi-Public on the zoning map. Prior to
those designations being established, the parcel had two lawful single-family dwellings on it. It
was never contemplated for Public/Quasi-Public use. These were clearly a succession of
mapping errors. The proposed zoning is R-3, Residential which is the least dense of the
residential districts, it would not allow additional construction on the property, given the
property size, it would merely recognize those structures as lawful and enable them to be rebuilt
should something happen to them which is not a protection they currently have. So we are very
supportive of the measure, it really is a clean-up type proposal. Paul Fasi was the staff Planner,
he has a lot of details on our processing of the resolution if you have questions, but to us it's a
pretty simple item. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Giroux, Corporation Counsel, you have any comment at this
time?
MR. GIROUX: No, Chair. I'm open to questions though.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, we have the landowner as well as the consultant at the
meeting today. If you have any questions of either of them as we proceed, I will call them to the
podium. The floor is now open for discussion. Seeing none, the Chair will give his
recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend that the revised
proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend the Paia-Haiku Community Plan and
Land Use Map from Public/Quasi-Public to Single-Family for Tax Key Map Number
(2) 2-6-009:017, Paia, Maui, Hawaii, be passed on first reading. Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I move to adopt the measure as stated.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Guzman. Discussion? Seeing
none, all those in favor of the motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried; eight ayes, one excused, Mr. Hokama.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill on the
Community Plan Amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend that the revised
proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning from
P-1 Public/Quasi-Public District to R-3 Residential District for Tax Key Number
(2) 2-6-009:017, Paia, Maui, Hawaii, to be passed on first reading and that County
Communication 11-317 be filed.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So moved, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Guzman. Discussion?
Seeing none, all in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion is carried; eight ayes, no noes, one excused, Mr. Hokama.
Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill for a
Change in Zoning and FILING of communication.
CHAIR CARROLL: Just making sure we filed the communication.

ITEM NO. 4: DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT, COMMUNITY PLAN
AMENDMENT, AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR 500 EAST
WELAKAHAO ROAD (KIHEI) (CC 12-251)
CHAIR CARROLL: Moving on, Members, LU-4, District Boundary Amendment, Community Plan
Amendment, and Change of Zoning for 500 East Welakahao Road, Kihei. The Community is in
receipt of County Communication 12-251, from the Planning Director, transmitting proposed
bills to grant a District Boundary Amendment from Agricultural District to Urban District,
Community Plan Amendment from Agricultural to Heavy Industrial, and a Change of Zoning
from Agricultural District to M-2 Heavy Industrial District for approximately 14.5 acres located
at 500 East. . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Welakahao, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. . .Road, Kihei, Maui, Hawaii to facilitate long-term industrial use of
the property including the continuance of current rock crushing activities. Members, we're
focusing today on the revised proposed bills transmitted by Corporation, by correspondence
dated February 8, 2013, from the Department of Corporation Counsel. For your information, the
revised proposed bills incorporate non-substantive revisions. In addition, the Chair requested
that the Change of Zoning bill incorporate a new condition relating to dust mitigation measures.
The proposed new condition is reflected in the revised Change in Zoning bill transmitted by the
Department of Corporation Counsel. We'll discuss the conditions and revised proposed bills
generally following the presentation by Pacific Rim Land, Incorporated consultant and
comments from Planning. Presentation by Mich Hirano of Munekiyo & Hiraga. The Committee
will stand in recess for two minutes to prepare for the presentation. Recess. . . .(gavel). . .
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RECESS:

2:04 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:07 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). .. The Land Use Committee meeting of February 13, 2013 is now
back in session. We now turn the presentation over to the consultant.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you very much, Chair Carroll, and good afternoon, Committee Members. My
name is Mich Hirano with Munekiyo & Hiraga, and we're a planning consulting firm assisting
the applicant, Pacific Rim Land, with the application before you this afternoon. In terms of
background, the owner and applicant for the application today is Pacific Rim Land and the
operator of the Kihei Rock Crushing Facility is Goodfellow Brothers. The Kihei baseyard and
rock crushing facility was established at that site in 1979 and the facility has been operating
under a Special Use Permit and the Conditional Permit, and those permits are valid until 2016
and 2017, respectively. The owner and operator, both Goodfellow Brothers and Pacific Rim
Land, desire permitted land uses and permanent zoning for the facility. And I'd like to add that
representatives from the owner are here today, Charlie Jencks and Blanca Lafolette and with
Goodfellow Brothers, Ray Skelton. So we will be able to answer any questions that the
Committee Members may have. In terms of the location of the facility, this is South Kihei,
Piilani Highway is running up and down on the left-hand side of the screen. Welakahao is at this
location and the rock crushing facility is on the east side or mauka of old Welakahao Road and it
is adjacent to the existing Kihei Wastewater Treatment Facility. The project site is
approximately 14.5 acres and just in terms of surrounding land uses, it's again, the Kihei rock
crushing. . .the Kihei Wastewater Treatment Facility is just to the north of the property. This is
agricultural land that's owned by Haleakala Ranch and just east of that it's agricultural land
that's owned by Monsanto Corporation and they're growing seed corn in the area. The new
Kihei Police Station is just south of Kanani Drive on the mauka side of Piilani Highway, and
there is a signalized intersection at that road location of Piilani Highway and Kanani Drive. The
site plan as you see before you is rectangular in shape, 15.. .14.5 acres, this is Piilani Highway at
the bottom of the screen. There is a berm in the landscape, buffer of kiawe trees that have grown
fairly full that buffers and screens the baseyard and rock crushing facility from Piilani Highway.
Access to the site is shared by a private driveway and Welakahao Road that goes to the
wastewater reclamation facility, and then there's a driveway that goes into the Kihei rock
crushing plant. There is a baseyard office and about 20 employees are located and operate and
are based out of the facility. There are stockpile areas. There's equipment, storage areas. . .this
is where the crushing plant generally is.. .takes place and raw materials are stored in this
particular location of the site. Just like to clarify that there is no quarrying going on at the
facility, but raw material is brought in, and that's usually from construction areas and
construction operations in the South Maui area. They bring their surplus earth and rock material
into the site. Just again, more recently, the Andaz was under construction. When they were
demoing the existing hotel, lots of those. . .that area. . .that material came to the rock crushing
facility. The concrete was crushed, the iron was separated and sent to. . .for reclamation and the
raw material was back. . .put back into the site for fill material and construction aggregate. So
the rock crushing is done in this particular area and the movement of the operations, the trucks
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come in, either load or unload the material, the crushing plant crushes the materials, stock piles it
in these locations, and then for exiting trucks that are south bound, there is a driveway and a
private road that Pac Rim has a access easement over, and it goes to the Kanani Road
intersection and that is a signalized intersection so it facilitates movement onto Piilani Highway
for southbound movements. If the trucks are going to the north, they can come down Welakahao
Road and make an easy right turn onto Piilani Highway. Here's a picture of the facility, the
driveway going down into the reclamation or the Kihei rock crushing site, and this is the office,
just at the mid-screen, these are the stock piles of aggregate and this is the rock crusher, it's not
in operation, it's been dismantled. And usually the rock crushing takes place maybe three
months of the year, if that, and there's enough material that's stored and stockpiled, and if there's
more material that's needed, then they'll assemble the crusher and make more aggregate. Again,
as you can see, this is in the southern portion of the property. There's a good solid base of gravel
that's sealed, and so it keeps the windblown emissions down from this operation and you can see
some of the trucking equipment and trucks in the background. In terms of the specific land use
designation, the State Land Use District Boundary is agricultural and the proposal is to change a
District Boundary Amendment from Agricultural to the Urban District. The Kihei-Makena
Community Plan has the area designated as agriculture and the application before you is a
Community Plan Amendment to change the land use designation from Agriculture to Heavy
Industrial. And the Maui County zoning for the underlying land is agricultural, and the
application before you is to change the zoning from Agricultural to the M-2 Heavy Industrial
Zoning District. And as I mentioned, currently the operations are permitted through a State Land
Use Special Use Permit which is valid until October 2016 and a County Conditional Permit
that's valid until November 2017. The rock crushing facility is captured within the South Maui
Urban Growth Boundary of the Maui Island Plan. As you can see, the Boundary goes mauka of
Piilani Highway to the north and extends to cover the Kihei Wastewater Reclamation Facility
and the Kihei Rock Crushing Facility. There will always be an agricultural buffer from this site
to the residential areas to the west, and the Urban Growth Boundary goes back mauka on the
highway to the south where the existing and new Kihei Police Station is under construction. In
terms of the permitted uses in the M-2 Heavy Industrial District, there is a whole range of uses
that numbers from 1 to 27, and during the Environmental Assessment that was done for the
project, we met with the Kihei Community Association executive and although they were very
supportive of the current operations, they did express some concern because of the range of uses
that the M-2 Heavy Industrial Use would allow. And in response to that, the landowner, Pacific
Rim Land, had restricted the uses on the zoning—and that's the conditional part of the zoning--to
just five uses, and that was any use that's permitted in the B-1, B-2, and B-3 Business Districts,
with some restrictions as I'll go on later, factories, junk establishments, and lumberyards, and
machine shops, so of the 27 uses, five are actually are ones that the applicant is seeking for uses.
Again, the M-2 Heavy Use. . .the M-2 Heavy Industrial category has a Special Use category and
there are a number of special uses that can be carried out under a Special Use Permit. Again, the
applicant has restricted those to those uses that are currently going on at the site. There's no
asphalt manufacturing at the present time, but they do have a concrete batching plant so they
would like to include this particular activity for future special uses. Explosive storage, no
manufacturing but they do store explosives on the site and that's used for blasting of rock
material either at the site or at different locations. The explosives handling is very tightly
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regulated by the U.S. Tobacco and Firearms Agency. The other type of use would be a saw mill
and then, of course, the rock, sand, and gravel crushing operations. There's no excavation or
quarrying on the site. You have a table that's similar to this. We haven't been able to update it
to the new formatting that was done and recently transmitted to the Committee, but the uses and
the special uses are the same and as I mentioned, the permitted uses are restricted. The special
uses include just the four uses, and the permitted other uses in the B-1, B-2, and B-3 are
restricted to equipment rental and sale, storage buildings and warehouses, storage yards, trucking
and truck storage, and accessory office uses, and those are similar to the uses that are going on
right now at the site. Factory uses have been limited to. . .again, there was a whole range of
factory uses under that factory permitted use, so the applicant has reduced the. . .and limited the
factory uses to the ones that are on the screen before you. And the applicant felt that these were
very compatible to the neighborhood, they're not noxious type uses and that they could also
provide other flexibility and opportunities in the future should the operations cease to exist. So
thank you very much for your time and if you have any questions, I mentioned there's
representatives from the applicant and the landowner to.. .and the operator to answer any
questions the Committee may have.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We will now stand in recess for two minutes while we put up the
screen. Recess. . . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

2:20 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:24 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of February 13, 2013, is now back in
session. Members, the Committee is in receipt of . .we are now hearing LU-4, District
Boundary Amendment, Community Plan Amendment, Change in Zoning, 500 East Welakahao
Road, Kihei. Committee is in receipt of County Communication 12-215, from the Planning
Director, transmitting the proposed bills to a district boundary amendment from Agricultural
District to Urban District and Community Plan Amendment from Agricultural to Heavy
Industrial, and Change of Zoning from Agricultural to M-2 Heavy Industrial District, for
approximately 14.5 acres, located at 500 East Welakahao Road, Kihei, Maui, Hawaii to facilitate
long-term industrial use of the property, including the continuation of current rock crushing
activities. We're focusing today on the revised proposed bill, transmitted by correspondence
dated February 8, 2013, from the Department of Corporation Counsel. For your information, the
revised proposed bills incorporate nonsubstantial revisions. In addition, the Chair requested the
Change in Zoning bill incorporate the new condition for dust mitigation measures. That
proposed new condition is reflected in the revised Change of Zoning transmitted by Corporation
Counsel. We'll discuss the conditions and the revised proposed bill. The issues we have are
dust mitigation, if the Committee wants to discuss the Chair's recommended that condition be
included. I'd now like to ask the Department to give comment.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We have with us staff Planner, Kurt Wollenhaupt, who can
summarize the application for the Committee.
- 15 -
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MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Good afternoon, Members of the Maui Council. This application is actually
remarkable for its lack of controversy. It's gone through many different hearings at the level of
the Maui Planning Commission for the three permits which are in front of you today. In
addition, the Maui Planning Commission approved the County Special Use Permit for the rock
crushing, contingent upon today's review and outcome. As indicated by Mr. Hirano of
Munekiyo & Hiraga, there was one concern and that had to do with the possibility of expanding
this for a range of uses; however, with the conditional zoning which conditions it down to a
limited number of uses, many of which are almost identical to what's been going on since 1979,
I think the concerns of that one individual were ameliorated. Therefore, just to report the Maui
Planning Commission did vote unanimously in favor of this. If there are any other questions,
perhaps I can answer them or the Director of the Planning Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Corporation Counsel, do you have any comment at this time?
MR. GIROUX: No comment at this time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, I will now open the floor to discussion. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Department, for bringing this up.
Just wanted to make a comment that this is something that's been going on for, as they said,
since 1979 and haven't had complaints that I know of. I used to live right down the street for
years from that location and had no problems. You can't even tell when you go down Piilani
Highway that it's even there. So I see no concerns and I really like the way they've conditioned
it down and restricted it to essentially what's going on there now.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Yeah, I was.. .thank you, Mr. Wollenhaupt, is it? And
we're sifting through the Maui Planning Commission notes and things, minutes, and I know
there was one area and I believe it's been addressed but it was in regards to the hours of
operation. There had been, I think, in certain documents, 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., but then in the
application it was 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and a 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., so I'm just wondering if
you know today. . .and I'm trying to look through and see if it's been addressed in today's
documents.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: With regards to the hours of operation, under the County Special Use Permit
conditions number 11. . .what had been approved by the Maui Planning Commission, the hours
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of operation of the rock crushing facility shall be limited to the period beginning at 7:00 a.m. and
ending at 5:00 p.m., so that's the condition that has been approved by the Council, of course...
Commission, contingent upon today's review of the other three applications. So the hours are
7:00 to 5:00, not 7:00 to 6:00.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And so as far as you know, applicant is not applying, maybe
I can get applicant down for further clarification. You know if they. . .
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Mich is. . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're looking for. . .Chair, if we. . .can we get applicant down?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes. Could applicant or his representative come down to the podium please?
Identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you, Chair Carroll. My name is Mich Hirano with Munekiyo & Hiraga.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi, Mich. Thank you for being here. So yeah, I just wanted to
clarify the discrepancy or, you know, sort of confusion in the hours that were represented.
MR. HIRANO: Yes, thank you, Councilmember Cochran. The applicant is fine with 7:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m. as stated in the Special Use Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions while I have him at the podium? Hearing none.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, we're. . .no, oh, yeah, no, not for Mr. Hirano, but for
Mr. Wollenhaupt, Kurt. Kurt, just following up with Planning Commission comments
to. . .`cause looking through comments obviously, I know it was passed unanimously and that's
awesome. There was question, I think, from Mr. Hiranaga, in. . .there were 20 letters of
comments sent out or letters and then only 19, I think, were brought. . .were received and
he. . .his comment was.. .is that a common practice to. . .if there's no comment, then there's no,
you know, no comment letter in the binder when he had seen 19, all said no comment, but the
one was not there and I believe that you responded saying, well, there are many comments that
were too lengthy to put in. So for me, I kind of would like to know, why do we just disregard
comments from. . .it doesn't say who it was from, but just because they were too lengthy in
nature that it wouldn't be put into the binder, you know, for people to look over and discuss and
address.
CHAIR CARROLL: Planning Department?
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MR. WOLLENHAUPT: If you're referring to agency comments, oftentimes when.. .we send out to
maybe 20 or 30 agencies, and it's typical that perhaps only 15 will respond. Many of them don't
even respond with no comment and then we send out a second notice to try to get their
information. So from that perspective, oftentimes there is no. . .there will be no response.
We've tried twice. I'm not sure without looking back into all the documents, it would seem
unlikely that we would not have put all of the responses in unless it was just completely
mimicking that which might have been in the Environmental Assessment, but I would not
imagine we would have left anything out because it was too lengthy and the fact the report was
pretty thick, so I would have to go back and look through the records about what exactly
Mr. Hiranaga was referring to about being too lengthy.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it was in the EA that you had commented that they got
excessively long with responses-MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Oftentimes. . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: -- and that you were going to look into perhaps, you know, bringing
down, paraphrasing, or summarizing, that way it's still put in for review and comment by
commissioners or...ourselves, the Council. So. . .
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Oftentimes what happens is that in the Environmental Assessment document,
that can be relatively thick. . .actually I brought it with me just to give part of the process, so this
document has been finished with the Environmental Assessment since this had a Community
Plan Amendment attached to it. And then if questions are answered in that, those items that may
have been addressed would not necessarily have been replicated for the Maui Planning
Commission during their deliberations of the District Boundary Amendment, Community Plan
Amendment, Change in Zoning, and the County Special Use Permit, 'cause they would have
addressed perhaps historical resources, so we wouldn't have included all of them again in the
staff report, as the Planning Commission would have already looked at the Environmental
Assessment. We'd be looking at additional information that would come to light as a result of
the other applications, so it might have been a reference to. . .we didn't include all of the
lengthy. . .some of the perhaps comments that might have been very lengthy and the EA because
the EA had been accepted, it'd gone through the OEQC publication process and it had no
contested hearing at the State level or at the Planning Commission, so that might have been what
we were referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Any further discussion? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For the Department, the applicant had said that
you have a current Special Use Permit that goes till 2018 or 16 or something like that, is that
right?
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MR. WOLLENHAUPT: They have a Conditional Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Conditional Use Permit and a State Special Use Permit?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Yes, because it's on State Ag land, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So when we change this Zoning to M-2, they need to get a County
Special Use Permit, and the State Special Use Permit and the County Conditional Use Permit
now just goes away, is that what.. .is that how that works? Or are they, now are they going to
have that Special Use Permits and the zoning is okay and then they still have to get a County
Special Use Permit as opposed to a State Special Use Permit?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Actually, we had a long discussion about the timing of this, 'cause the
applicant understandably did not want to have permits lapsing with some being...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: And it was decided after discussions that the Planning Commission with their
new authority after the change in the M-2, M-3, they are the final authority on the County
Special Use Permit for the rock crushing, so they approved that contingent upon today's results,
so that should be in place to activate if today this body. . .well, through the second hearing of the
Council at that point of time. That our timing as the County's Special Use Permit is hanging out
there ready to go with the date that the full Council may approve these three applications, then I
would think that the State Land Use Commission Special Use Permit would drop out since it's
no longer in Ag and the Conditional Permit would be irrelevant but hanging out there just as
something that's been approved in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And which is fine. I'm a-okay with that. I just want to make sure that
it's a legal thing that they're not going to get thrown into another weird situation. So I would ask
Mr. Giroux if the Planning Commission did do a provisional or. . .I forgot what the word you
use, but essentially a provisional Special Use Permit. . .County Special Use Permit, if that's
okay?
MR. GIROUX: Yes. We were asked to.. .Chair, if I may?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: We were asked to look into that and seeing that, you know, you have an ongoing
operation that has several County and State permits that were issued by County agencies, the
level of redundancy and looking at the practicalities of trying to keep this operation going and
keeping it legal, we felt that at the time since the Planning Commission had the authority over
multiple layers of that, that they could as long as the zoning kicks in then the process, everything
done prior to it, would then be in order, so that somebody wouldn't be left, you know, while
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trying to get a property up to Code being left to have to stop their operation and restart it. We're
trying to avoid that and I think the method that we came up with is kosher.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And I want to commend the Department for doing something
like that so we don't have to have to go through again more hearings even at the Planning
Commission level so we. . .once we get it out of Council, if it goes out of Council, they're good
to go. And how long is that conditional or that provisional Special Use Permit for?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: County Special Use Permit would be valid until May 31, 2022.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Any further discussion? Mr. Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I just have a question for the Department. Would this
area, this 14.5 acres, is that the only area in South Maui that would be zoned as Heavy Industrial
or are there other parcels in South Maui that is currently zoned as Heavy Industrial?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Well, that's an interesting question that you bring up, having done some
research with the Long Range Division. At the moment in the South Maui Community Plan
area, the only Heavy Industrial M-2 is the Maalaea Plant and that's about 12. . .13 acres. So
that's the only currently entitled M-2 Heavy Industrial in the entire region.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: How far. . .what's the distance between the two if we were to rezone this
14.5 acres? Would you know?
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: If, in Maalaea to. . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About 10 miles
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: About 10 miles Okay. Thank you.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: There are. . .
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: There are. . .there is.. .there are. . .is an application for an Heavy Industrial
site at the Puunene Old Airport. However, that's subject to all the exigencies and concerns about
going through the State Land Use Commission. So that's not entitled. . .there's no guarantee, so
at the moment we only have the Maui Electric Plant as the M-2 Heavy Industrial.
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Just a quick follow-up.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Where.. .could you tell me where most of the Heavy
Industrial zones are in Maui, zoned areas are? I mean is there a cluster of them in a certain area
like Central Maui, most of them are there, or most of them in West Maui, what? Just to get a
better perspective of where these are located.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Most of the Heavy Industrial's located in Kahului,
either around the mill or, believe it or not, right around Dairy Road with. . .like, I think it's
Kmart is Heavy Industrial right in that particular area. It hasn't been developed that way but
that's, you know, the result of it.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Just a comment. I like the fact that the applicant has
actually restricted its use in terms of out of the 27 uses has limited it to 5. I believe that shows a
good faith intent to remain an operation for that specific use. I also like the fact that it's been
operating the same way for the last 30 years and there hasn't been any complaints on the. . .in
terms of the use itself. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Any further discussion? If none, the Chair will give his
recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend the revised proposed
bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend the State Land Use District Classification from
Agricultural District to Urban District, Conditional Boundary Amendment for Property Situated
at 500 East Welakahao Road, Kihei, Maui, Hawaii, to be passed on first reading. Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR iGUZMAN: Second, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch. I am sorry, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's alright.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: That's his district.
CHAIR CARROLL: And seconded by Mr. Guzman.
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Discussion? You're too quiet, Mr. Couch. You have to talk loud.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll take that to heart, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor of the motion on the floor,
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carries; eight ayes, no noes, one excused, Mr. Hokama.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill to Amend
the State Land Use District Classification.
CHAIR CARROLL: Next I will entertain a motion to recommend that the revised proposed bill
entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend Kihei-Makena Community Plan and Land Use Map
from Agricultural to Heavy Industrial for Property Situated at 500 East Welakahao Road, Kihei,
Maui, Hawaii, be passed on first reading. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved, Mr. Chair. It's Welakahao Road, just FYI.
CHAIR CARROLL: Second -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: --by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion on the
floor, signal by. . .signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carries; eight ayes, no noes, one excused, Mr. Hokama.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Cavell°, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill on the
Community Plan Amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Finally, I will entertain a motion to recommend that the revised proposed
bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning from Agricultural District to M-2
Heavy Industrial District, Conditional Zoning for Property Situated at 500 East
Welakahao Road, Kihei, Maui, Hawaii, be passed on first reading; and that County
Communication 12-251 be filed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seconded by Mr. Guzman. Discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the
motion on the floor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried; eight ayes, no noes, one excused, Mr. Hokama.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill for a
Change in Zoning and FILING of communication.
CHAIR CARROLL: This bring us to the end of our Land Use Committee meeting today. Thank you,
Members, for everyone being in attendance. We will now close the meeting. We are in
adjournment. . .. (gavel). . .

ADJOURN: 2:45 p.m.
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